
1 

Bellefonte Borough Council Business Meeting 

7:30 PM Monday, February 5th, 2024 

Large Meeting Room, Armory Building, 

301 North Spring Street, Bellefonte  

 VIEW RECORDING OF WORK SESSIONS and BOROUGH COUNCIL MEETINGS   

       Recordings can be viewed on CNET, Comcast’s Government Education Channel 7, or at  

      www.cnet1.org ATTEND IN PERSON.  The meeting room is open with normal occupancy 

       limits.  

AGENDA 

I. 7:30 PM CALL MEETING TO ORDER

II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

III. ROLL CALL

Mr. Bernier, President, North Ward Ms. McKean, West Ward 

Mr. Brachbill, South Ward Ms. Purnell, North Ward 

Ms. Cleeton, South Ward Ms. Sedgwick, West   Ward 

Ms. Dann, Vice-President, South Ward  Ms. Tosti-Vasey, West Ward 

Mr. Johnson, North Ward  Mayor Johnson, At Large 

IV. ADDITIONS TO THE COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA

In accordance with Act 65 of 2021, If a matter is not on the Agenda, Council cannot take official action on it with 

some exceptions.  The Council can act on matters relating to potential or real emergencies.  Council may add a 

matter of agency business to its agenda through a majority vote.  The Council should state the reason why the 

action item is being added to the agenda.  Council may vote to add an action item(s) to the agenda. 

VI. PUBLIC COMMENT (Oral)

This Public Comment period is for oral comments regarding any action items listed on this meeting agenda or any 

comments in general. No deliberations will be entered into by Council at this time. Please sign in, come to the 

podium at the appropriate time, and state your name and address and which item you are speaking about. Please 

try to limit comments to three minutes maximum. 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 1 of 193

http://www.cnet1.org/


2 
 

VII. COMMUNICATIONS (written) 
 

CATA letter of February 1st - Additional details and response to Public Hearing on January 30th, 2024.  FYI.  

Council actions are listed under Old Business.   
 

VIII. CONSENT AGENDA 
 

All items listed on the Consent Agenda are considered routine and will be acted upon by a single motion. There will 

be no separate discussion of these items unless members of the Council request specific items to be removed for 

separate action. Council Action Requested 
 

General Council Meeting Minutes January 16th, 2024 

Finance Budget v. Actual December 2023 

Finance Budget v. Actual Summary December 2023 

Finance Stover McGlaughlin Invoice January 2024 

Finance Treasurer’s Report December 2023 

Finance Voucher Summary December 2023 

 

Call for a motion/2nd to approve the Consent Agenda 

IX. REPORTS 
 

Please limit all reports/rebuttals/deliberations to three minutes maximum. 

DEPARTMENT OFFICIAL/ 

STAFF 

REPORT 

Mayor Mayor Johnson Verbal 

Jr. Council Member Mr. Larson Submitted 

Office of Community Affairs (OCA) 

  

HARB recommends the denial of the following projects as the 

materials and style do not meet the Secretary of Interior’s 

Standards for Historic Rehabilitation 

➢ 225 W. Lamb Street – Retroactive review of a blue corrugated 

metal roof installation by Solar Shield.  

 

➢ 408 E. Linn Street – Retroactive review of two original 

window replacements with Anderson 400 Series Casement and 

400 Series Picture. 

 

Motion/2nd to approve the denial of a Certificate of Appropriateness 

of the above-referenced projects.  

 

More information on these projects can be found in your packet.  

Ms. Thompson Submitted 

 

X. CURRENT and OLD BUSINESS 
 

Approval of Ordinance No. 02052024-01 Authorizing Logan Fire Company No. 1 and Undines Fire Company 

No. 2 to remit invoices to Insurance Carriers for Services Rendered. Motion/2nd to approve Ordinance No. 

02052024-01 Authorizing Logan Fire Company No. 1 and Undines Fire Company No. 2 to remit invoices to 

Insurance Carriers for Services Rendered. 

S. Spring Street Streetscape Phase II update. Motion/2nd to remove from the project a portion of the sidewalk 

near High Street (in front of the Decker Building). 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 2 of 193



3 
 

CATA Fee Increase letter of December 21, 2023.  Motion/2nd to send letter to the CATA Board expressing 

council’s great displeasure over the fact that the Borough received a nearly ten-fold fee increase notice, 

after our 2024 borough budget was set (December 18th, 2023).  Motion/2nd to contact/set up meetings with 

officials from Federal, State, County governments, other service providers to seek assistance in solving 

human service needs (voiced at January 29th CATA hearing), funding, and alternative public 

transportation systems. 

CATA Fee Increase Letter of December 21, 2023 and CATA letter of February 1st.  CATA has indicated that the 

Borough has until June 30th to notify them about service levels for their FY 24 (July 1st, 2024-June 30th 2025).  

Motion/2nd to notify CATA that Bellefonte Borough intends to use CATA services up to the budgeted 

amount for Calendar Year 2024, unless Federal, State, County, other resources become available making 

increased services possible.  Bellefonte Borough will notify CATA before June 30th, regarding service levels 

after December 31st, 2024.   
 

XI. NEW BUSINESS 
 

Request for Veteran Parking Only Sign/creation of parking space near the Courthouse. Motion/2nd to approve 

the addition of a Veteran Parking Only Sign/creation of parking space near the Courthouse.  

JC Orr & Son Inc Certificate for Payment No. 6 for Armory Property Project. Motion/ 2nd to remit payment to 

JC Orr & Son Inc for Armory Property Project Application No. 6. 

Proposed 2024 Street Paving List from the Superintendent of Public Works. Motion/2nd to approve the 2024 

Street Paving List with modifications to be made based on the budget.   

Draft Ordinance No. 02202024-01 Amendments to Chapter 35: Fire Department. Motion/2nd to advertise the 

drafted Ordinance No. 02202024-01 Amendments to Chapter 35: Fire Department. 

Bellefonte Area School District Elementary School Land Development Plan - Legal agreement between 

Bellefonte Area School District and Bellefonte Borough regarding conditional use approval, in place of having a 

“complete” plan related the proposed BASD elementary school along Airport Road. Motion/2nd to send the draft 

legal agreement to the Borough Solicitor for review and opinion with the applicant paying the cost.   

Bellefonte Borough letter of support for the Benner Pike Corridor (SR 0150) for future planning funds and TIP 

consideration. Motion/2nd to send a letter of support to the CCMPO.  
 

XII. ADJOURNMENT 

 The council meeting will be adjourned at or as close as possible to 9:00 PM 
 

The Council Code of Conduct and the 2024 List of Goals/action items will be included with each Agenda.  

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 3 of 193



BELLEFONTE BOROUGH COUNCIL 
    Regular Meeting 

  MEETING MINUTES 
January 16, 2024 - 7:30 p.m. 

236 West Lamb Street, Bellefonte, Pennsylvania 16823 
www.bellefonte.net 

I. CALL TO ORDER
The January 16, 2024 meeting of the Bellefonte Borough Council was called to order at 7:30 
p.m.

III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

III. MEMBERS PRESENT Mr. Kent Bernier, President 
Mr. Randall Brachbill  
Ms. Deborah Cleeton  
Ms. Barbara Dann, Vice President 
Mr. Douglas Johnson, Pro Tempore  
Ms. Shawna McKean 
Ms. Rita Purnell 
Ms. Johanna Sedgwick 
Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey 
Mr. Christian Larson, Jr. Council Member 
Mayor Buddy Johnson  

STAFF PRESENT Mr. Ralph Stewart, Borough Manager 
Mr. Don Holderman, Assistant Borough Manager  
Ms. Julie Brooks, Assistant Superintendent of Public Works 
Mr. Shawn Weaver, Chief of Police 

IV. ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA
In accordance with Act 65 of 2021, If a matter is not on the Agenda, Council cannot take official 
action on it with some exceptions. The Council can act on matters relating to potential or real 
emergencies. Council may add a matter of agency business to its agenda through a majority vote. 
The Council should state the reason why the action item is being added to the agenda. Council 
may vote to add an action item(s) to the agenda. 

V. PUBLIC COMMENT - Agenda and Non-Agenda/General Items and Comment
Sharon Weiser, a resident of Pine Street spoke regarding CATA’s plan to reduce or eliminate
services in Spring and Benner Townships as well as in Bellefonte by requiring a 10-fold increase
in municipality funding. She believes this decision would negatively impact foreign students,
people with DUI records, people with disabilities, and retired people along with harming the
environment.

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 4 of 193

http://www.bellefonte.net/


Tosti-Vasey announced that the PA Human Relations Commission and the Centre County 
Advisory Council to the PHRC would be holding an educational training on the ADA in Public 
Accommodations on Thursday, January 18, 2024. 
 
VI.  COMMUNICATIONS  
COMPLAINT: Speed Limit Signs on Pine Street and Stoney Batter. Council action will be taken 
later in this meeting. 

 
CATA Budget request for their 2024/25 Budget for the Bellefonte Area. No Council action 
requested.  

• It was also noted that there will be a public hearing to discuss the changes at the Armory 
on January 24, 2024. 

• There was a discussion regarding public transportation in the Borough.  
 

Invitation to attend the Bellefonte Emergency Medical Services Training Session for Elected 
Officials on Thursday, February 27th, 2024 at 7:00 pm. Training Session will be at Bellefonte 
EMS, 369 Phoenix Avenue, Bellefonte. No Council action requested. 
 

VII. CONSENT AGENDA (will be acted upon by a single motion unless otherwise noted) 
All items listed on the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine and will be acted upon by a 
single motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless members of the Council 
request specific items to be removed for separate action. 
 
Consent Agenda includes the following items: 
 

1. General  Council Meeting Minutes January 2, 2024 
 
Brachbill motioned and Tosti-Vasey seconded to approve the Consent Agenda. No discussion. 
Roll Call Vote. Motion carried. 

Mr. Kent Bernier               yay Ms. Shawna McKean                  yay 
Mr. Randy Brachbill          yay Ms. Rita Purnell                           yay 
Ms. Deb Cleeton               yay Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               yay 
Ms. Barbara Dann            yay Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             yay 
Mr. Doug Johnson            yay  
 

IX. REPORTS   
Mayor Johnson  
Mayor Johnson thanked the Borough workers for their hard work and he reminded residents to 
keep walks clear in inclement weather. 

 
Police – Chief Weaver  
• December 2023 Report- Will be available for the February 20th meeting. 
• Parking Enforcement and Animal Control December 2023 Report 
• Chief Weaver also mentioned a CIT (Crisis Intervention Team) training he attended. 

 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 5 of 193



Office of Community Affairs (OCA)/Historical and Architectural Review Board (HARB) 
The next HARB meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, January 23rd, 2024 at 8:30 a.m. in Council 
Chambers. 

The Planning Commission will meet next on Monday, February 12th, 2024 at 5:00 p.m. in the 
Large Meeting Room, 1st Floor, Armory Building. 

An OCA Memo will be available at the February 5th Meeting. 

Liaison Reports  (Reports were submitted) 
Nuisance Codes (NONE) 
Borough Manager (Report submitted) 

X. CURRENT and OLD BUSINESS
The Pennsylvania Department of Environmental Protection is requiring an Alternate Sewage 
Enforcement Officer be appointed for Bellefonte Borough for the year 2024. Stan Wallace and 
Jeff Kreger work together for other Municipalities as each other’s alternates. As an alternate, 
Jeff Kreger will follow the fee schedule provided by Stan Wallace at the January 2, 2024, 
Council Meeting.  

Tosti-Vasey motioned and Dann seconded to appoint Jeff Kreger as Alternate Sewage 
Enforcement Officer for 2024. No discussion. Roll call vote. Motion carried. 

Mr. Kent Bernier               yay Ms. Shawna McKean                  yay 
Mr. Randy Brachbill          yay Ms. Rita Purnell                           yay 
Ms. Deb Cleeton               yay Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               yay 
Ms. Barbara Dann            yay Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             yay 
Mr. Doug Johnson            yay 

Volunteer Applications-David Lomison, Michael Schmidt, and Michael Scott submitted their 
volunteer applications after the last meeting and now have met the conditions for appointment to 
their respective Authorities, Boards, and Commissions. No Council action requested. 

Closed Captioning Mandates/Notice to CNET regarding Terminating Coverage – Staff is 
discussing possible amendments to the Settlement Agreement with the DOJ administrator. 
Another conference call is planned. All implementation deadlines have been extended.  No 
council action is requested at this time. 

XII. NEW BUSINESS
Memo from Assistant Borough Manager updating Council on: (no Council action requested) 

o CATA
o C-NET
o Bellefonte Area Industrial Development Authority
o Parkview Heights Stormwater Project
o TreePA
o S. Spring Street Streetscape Phase 2
o Logo on Borough Vehicles

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 6 of 193



o EV Charging Station update

Memo regarding Community Yard Sale, Riff Raff, Halloween, and Holiday Parking in the 
Borough. Proposed Dates are as follows: 

o Yard Sale Dates – (Fri. & Sat.) May 10 & 11, 2024
o Bulk Waste /Riff Raff Pick Up – (Mon. – Fri.) May 13-17, 2024
o Halloween Trick-or-Treating Hours, 6 – 8 PM, Thursday, October 31, 2024
o 2-Hour Courtesy Parking Program, Friday, November 29, 2024-Wednesday, January

1, 2025.

Brachbill motioned and Dann seconded to approve the dates provided for the Community Yard 
Sale, Riff Raff, Halloween, and Holiday Parking in Bellefonte Borough. No discussion. Roll 
call vote. Motion carried. 

Mr. Kent Bernier               yay Ms. Shawna McKean                  yay 
Mr. Randy Brachbill          yay Ms. Rita Purnell                           yay 
Ms. Deb Cleeton               yay Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               yay 
Ms. Barbara Dann            yay Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             yay 
Mr. Doug Johnson            yay 

Appointment of Don Townsend to Civil Service Commission (Dave Provan is stepping down). 
Don is currently the alternate.  

Brachbill motioned and Cleeton seconded to appoint Don Townsend to the Civil Service 
Commission.  Tosti-Vasey asked if Mr. Townsend’s volunteer application is on file.  It is.  Roll 
call vote. Motion carried. 
Mr. Kent Bernier               yay Ms. Shawna McKean                  yay 
Mr. Randy Brachbill          yay Ms. Rita Purnell                           yay 
Ms. Deb Cleeton               yay Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               yay 
Ms. Barbara Dann            yay Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             yay 
Mr. Doug Johnson            yay 

John Claar Excavating Certificate for Payment No. 1 for Parkview Heights Stormwater 
Management Project.  

Dann motioned and Sedgwick seconded to remit payment to John Claar Excavating for the 
Parkview Heights Stormwater Management Project Application No. 1. No discussion. Roll call 
vote. Motion carried. 

Mr. Kent Bernier               yay Ms. Shawna McKean                  yay 
Mr. Randy Brachbill          yay Ms. Rita Purnell                           yay 
Ms. Deb Cleeton               yay Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               yay 
Ms. Barbara Dann            yay Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             yay 
Mr. Doug Johnson            yay 

Draft Ordinance Authorizing Logan Fire Company No. 1 and Undines Fire Company No. 2 to 
remit invoices to Insurance Carriers for Services Rendered.  

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 7 of 193



Tosti-Vasey motioned and Dann seconded to advertise the drafted ordinance Authorizing 
Logan Fire Company No. 1 and Undines Fire Company No. 2 to remit invoices to Insurance 
Carriers for Services Rendered. No discussion. Roll call vote. Motion carried. 

Mr. Kent Bernier               yay Ms. Shawna McKean                  yay 
Mr. Randy Brachbill          yay Ms. Rita Purnell                           yay 
Ms. Deb Cleeton               yay Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               yay 
Ms. Barbara Dann            yay Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             yay 
Mr. Doug Johnson            yay 

Elected Official Travel Training Policy – Council is planning to review the Draft in the Work 
Session before this Business Meeting. Council may take action on this policy.  

Johnson motioned and Tosti-Vasey seconded to approve the Elected Official Travel Training 
Policy as presented or with any amendments approved by Council. No discussion. Roll call 
vote. Motion carried. 

Mr. Kent Bernier               yay Ms. Shawna McKean                  yay 
Mr. Randy Brachbill          yay Ms. Rita Purnell                           yay 
Ms. Deb Cleeton               yay Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               yay 
Ms. Barbara Dann            yay Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             yay 
Mr. Doug Johnson            yay 

Masullo Park-Dog Park. Council may consider one of the following motions. 

Brachbill motioned and Dann seconded to end plans/discussions related to establishing a dog 
park in Bellefonte Borough. Discussion included Tosti-Vasey said she would vote no on this 
motion since the petitioners are not being given a chance to answer the questions raised by 
McKean and others that might address the financial and safety concerns that were raised in 
the Work Session earlier in the evening. Roll call vote. Motion to discontinue plans and 
discussion carried. 

Mr. Kent Bernier               yay Ms. Shawna McKean                  NO 
Mr. Randy Brachbill          yay Ms. Rita Purnell                           yay 
Ms. Deb Cleeton               yay Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               yay 
Ms. Barbara Dann            yay Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey     NO 
Mr. Doug Johnson            yay 

Pine Street/Stoney Batter. 

Cleeton motioned and Tosti-Vasey seconded to convey to Penn DoT any SR 144 
concerns/complaints. No discussion. Roll call vote. Motion carried. 

Mr. Kent Bernier               yay Ms. Shawna McKean                  yay 
Mr. Randy Brachbill          yay Ms. Rita Purnell                           yay 
Ms. Deb Cleeton               yay Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               yay 
Ms. Barbara Dann            yay Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             yay 
Mr. Doug Johnson            yay 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 8 of 193



Tosti-Vasey motioned and Cleeton seconded to request an LTAP study of Stoney Batter related 
to signage improvements. No discussion. Roll call vote. Motion carried. 

Mr. Kent Bernier               yay Ms. Shawna McKean                  yay 
Mr. Randy Brachbill          yay Ms. Rita Purnell                           yay 
Ms. Deb Cleeton               yay Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               yay 
Ms. Barbara Dann            yay Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             yay 
Mr. Doug Johnson            yay 

Brachbill returned to the earlier item on the Off-Leash Dog Park.  He made a motion to remove 
the Off-Leash Dog Park from the Goals and Action Items to be worked on in 2024.  Dann 
seconded the motion.  No discussion. Roll call vote.  Motion carried 

Mr. Kent Bernier               yay Ms. Shawna McKean                  yay 
Mr. Randy Brachbill          yay Ms. Rita Purnell                           yay 
Ms. Deb Cleeton               yay Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               yay 
Ms. Barbara Dann            yay Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             NO 
Mr. Doug Johnson            yay 

XIII. ADJOURNMENT 
Motion to adjourn by Brachbill. Second by Dann.   
Meeting adjourned at 8:08pm.  
There was an executive session following tonight’s meeting for legal and personnel issues. 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 9 of 193



NAME (Please Print) 

Bellefonte Borough Council Meeting 

Tuesday, January 16th, 2024 

ADDRESS 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 10 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 11 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 12 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 13 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 14 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 15 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 16 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 17 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 18 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 19 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 20 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 21 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 22 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 23 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 24 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 25 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 26 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 27 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 28 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 29 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 30 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 31 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 32 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 33 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 34 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 35 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 36 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 37 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 38 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 39 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 40 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 41 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 42 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 43 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 44 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 45 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 46 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 47 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 48 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 49 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 50 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 51 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 52 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 53 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 54 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 55 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 56 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 57 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 58 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 59 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 60 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 61 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 62 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 63 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 64 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 65 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 66 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 67 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 68 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 69 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 70 of 193



PLANNING: 
 
The Planning Commission met on Monday, January 8 at 5:00 p.m. in Council Chambers. At this 
meeting, the Commission reviewed the revised Land Development Plans from HRG for the 
Bellefonte Elementary School.  
 
The Planning Commission approved the Preliminary/Final LDP, contingent upon a 
successful execution of the legal agreement between the Bellefonte Area School District 
and the Borough of Bellefonte.  
 
Motion/2nd to approve sending the legal agreement to the Borough Solicitor for review and 
comment. 
 

Nittany Valley Joint Planning Commission 
 
The NVJPC collectively has requested that townships and municipalities send to the CCMPO a 
letter of support for Benner Township to seek future planning funding for the Benner Pike 
Corridor (SR 1050).  
 
This letter of support does not commit the Borough to any financial obligation for studies 
concerning the Benner Pike Corridor at this time. The letter of support simply illustrates to the 
CCMPO that the Nittany Valley Joint Planning Region supports the project as one to consider for 
the future if/when funding becomes available.  
 
Additionally, Bellefonte Borough is clear that it prioritizes the Phoenix Ave / Logan Branch / 
Mill Street / Stoney Batter project, which has already been included on the TIP for and pending 
approval in Spring 2024.  
 
Doug Johnson and I are happy to answer any questions about the letter of support or the 
current TIP.  
 
Motion/2nd to send a letter of support to the CCMPO, conditional on any edits to the draft 
copy that has been included.  
 

 
ZONING: 

 
Short-term rental renewals for 2024 are coming in to the office and being processed. 2024 
Permits will be issued in the next week or so.  

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 71 of 193



There has been an influx of change of ownership rental applications and new business 
applications due to property owner changes in the Borough.  
 
 

HARB: 
 
Included in your packet are the HARB minutes and agendas for both the January 9 and the 
January 23 meetings. Both Megan Tooker and Maria Day were reappointed to HARB.  
 
On Tuesday, January 23, 2024 HARB reviewed two projects that were submitted after they 
had already been completed. There is additional information available about each of these 
projects.  
 
  225 W. Lamb Street – retroactive review of metal roof installation  

 
On August 22, 2023 it was noticed that a new roof was installed on the house. The shingle was 
replaced with a blue, corrugated metal roof. This roof was not approved by HARB. A letter to 
the homeowner was sent on that same day. The homeowner brought in a paper application and 
payment, but did not have any information about the roof. He said that the contractor, Solar 
Shield, was supposed to get all the required permits for the project. I was told to contact Solar 
Shield to get that information. It took a while to get the product information from Solar Shield, 
but they were responsive and accommodating.  
 
HARB recommends the denial of a Certificate of Appropriateness, as the corrugated metal 
roof does not meet the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for Historic Rehabilitation.   
 
 408 E. Linn Street – retroactive review of window installation 

 
On January 3, 2024, I noticed that new windows were being installed in the front of the house, 
without prior HARB approval. I reached out to the homeowners via email on that same day and 
asked that they retroactively apply to HARB for review of the windows. The homeowners 
submitted the application within a few days. The two windows are Anderson 400 Series 
Casement and 400 Series Picture.  
 
HARB recommends the denial of a Certificate of Appropriateness, as the new window styles 
and materials are not historically appropriate for the period of the house, as covered in 
the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for Historic Rehabilitation.  
 
 
 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 72 of 193



CALL TO ORDER:  
 
Attendance: 

Members Alternates Guests 
Sam McGinley, Chair Gay Dunne  
Megan Tooker Robert Wagner (CRCA)  
Walt Schneider Amy Kelchner  
Mike Leakey   
Marc McMaster   
Maria Day   
Philip Ruth   

 
New Business:  
 Borough Council approved reappointments of Megan Tooker and Maria Day to HARB. 

This is a four-year term, beginning 1/1/2024 and expiring 12/31/2027. 
 
Approval of the HARB meeting minutes: October 10, 2023 meeting minutes 
 
Public Comment: 
 
Additions / Corrections to the Agenda:  
 
Declaration of Conflict of Interest / Declaration of Ex Parte Communication:  
  
Project Review:  

 
Administrative Approvals: 
 236 Match Factory Place – business sign (issued 10/6/2023) 
 109 N. Allegheny (Vape Depot) – business sign (issued 10/18/2023) 
 420 E. Linn Street – front door re-paint (issued 10/24/2023) 
 315 Stoney Batter (Knights of Columbus) – sign for organization (issued 10/24/2023) 
 126-128 N. Spring Street – shingle roof replacement (issued 10/26/2023) 
 423 N. Allegheny – exterior paint (issued 11/21/2023) 
 133 N. Allegheny Street (Bellefonte Art Museum) – art installation (issued 

12/12/2023) 
 129 W. High Street (High Street Shops) – replace two front windows (issued 

12/29/2023) 
 243 N. Allegheny – repair rotting wood on porch, replace porch roof with standing seam 

metal. (issued 12/29/2023) 
 
Information / Discussion Items: 
 127 W Bishop (The Waffle Shop) – Applied on 11/17/23. Submitted by Sekula Signs. 

The application is on hold because the signs include internally illuminated signs, which 
are not permitted.  

 

 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 73 of 193



Old Business: 
 225 W. Lamb – blue metal roof installed without HARB approval. I did eventually get 

information from Solar Shield about the roof. It was installed over top of the shingle roof, 
and the shingles were not removed. Recommendation on how to proceed with this 
project.  

 
Adjournment: 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 74 of 193



 
HISTORICAL ARCHITECTURE REVIEW BOARD 

BELLEFONTE BOROUGH 
(DRAFT) MEETING MINUTES 

January 9, 2024, 2023 - 8:30 a.m. 
236 West Lamb Street, Bellefonte, PA  16823 

www.bellefonte.net 
 

 
CALL TO ORDER:  
The January 9, 2024 regular meeting of the Bellefonte Borough Historical Architecture 
Review Board (HARB) was called to order at 8:30 a.m. Members met virtually via 
ZOOM due to hazardous weather.  
  
MEMBERS PRESENT:   Amy Kelchner 

Megan Tooker 
    Maria Day 

Marc McMaster 
Philip Ruth 
Mike Leakey 
Walt Schneider (joined the meeting late at around 9:30am) 

 
ABSENT:    Sam McGinley 

Gay Dunne 
 

STAFF MEMBERS:  Gina Thompson, HARB Administrator  
  
GUESTS:    Randy Bracbhbill  
 
Additions / Corrections to the Agenda: NONE 

  
Declaration of Conflict of Interest / Declaration of Ex Parte Communication: None  
  
Approval of the HARB meeting minutes: McMaster motioned to approve the minutes 
of the October 10, 2023 meeting. Leakey seconded. There was no discussion. Motion 
carried.    

New Business:  Borough Council approved reappointments of Megan Tooker and 
Maria Day to HARB. This is a four-year term, beginning 1/1/2024 and expiring 
12/31/2027. 

Public Comment: NONE 
 
Project Review: NONE 
 
Administrative Approvals:  

• 236 Match Factory Place – business sign (issued 10/6/2023) 
• 109 N. Allegheny (Vape Depot) – business sign (issued 10/18/2023) 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 75 of 193

http://www.bellefonte.net/


 
• 420 E. Linn Street – front door re-paint (issued 10/24/2023) 
• 315 Stoney Batter (Knights of Columbus) – sign for organization (issued 

10/24/2023) 
• 126-128 N. Spring Street – shingle roof replacement (issued 10/26/2023) 
• 423 N. Allegheny – exterior paint (issued 11/21/2023) 
• 129 W. High Street (High Street Shops) – replace two front windows (issued 

12/29/2023) 
 

• 243 N. Allegheny – repair rotting wood on porch, replace porch roof with standing 
seam metal. (issued 12/29/2023) 

 
• 133 N. Allegheny Street (Bellefonte Art Museum) – art installation (issued 

12/12/2023) 
o Discussion regarding validity of historical claims within the Borough. How 

can HARB and the Borough ensure that historical claims are accurate and 
verified. 

o It was questioned if the Art Museum building was actually verified as a 
stop on the Underground Railroad. 

 
 
Information/Discussion Items: 

• Discussion regarding Administrative Approvals 
• 127 W Bishop (The Waffle Shop) – Applied on 11/17/23. Submitted by Sekula 

Signs. The application is on hold because the signs include internally illuminated 
signs, which are not permitted. 

 
Old Business: NONE 
 
New Business: 225 W. Lamb – blue metal roof installed without HARB approval. I did 
eventually get information from Solar Shield about the roof. It was installed over top of 
the shingle roof, and the shingles were not removed. Recommendation on how to 
proceed with this project. 

• It was decided that HARB will not approval this project 
• Discussion regarding holding homeowners and contractors accountable for work 

completed without HARB approval. 
• There is no strong enforcement policy in place which makes it difficult to hold 

homeowners and contractors accountable. 
• Walt was able to discuss past situations where citations were issued for non-

compliance. It was discussed that HARB/the Borough could consider instating a 
licensure process for contractors doing work in the Borough. This could be a 
feasible solution to make it so homeowners are not held responsible, but 
contractors are.  

 
 
Adjournment: With no other business to come before HARB, the meeting adjourned at 
10:20am.   
 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 76 of 193



CALL TO ORDER:  
 
Attendance: 

Members Alternates Guests 
Sam McGinley, Chair Gay Dunne  
Megan Tooker Robert Wagner (CRCA)  
Walt Schneider Amy Kelchner  
Mike Leakey   
Marc McMaster   
Maria Day   
Philip Ruth   

 
Approval of the HARB meeting minutes: January 9, 2024 meeting minutes 
 
Public Comment: 
 
Additions / Corrections to the Agenda:  
 
Declaration of Conflict of Interest / Declaration of Ex Parte Communication:  
  
Project Review:  
 225 W. Lamb Street – retroactive review of metal roof installation  

 
On August 22, 2023 it was noticed that a new roof was installed on the house. The shingle 
was replaced with a blue, corrugated metal roof. This roof was not approved by HARB. A 
letter to the homeowner was sent on that same day. The homeowner brought in a paper 
application and payment, but did not have any information about the roof. He said that the 
contractor, Solar Shield, was supposed to get all the required permits for the project. I was 
told to contact Solar Shield to get that information. It took a while to get the product 
information from Solar Shield, but they were responsive and accommodating.  

• Chuck Divey from Solar Shield will be present via Zoom to discuss the project.  
• Homeowner, Michael Irvin, is unable to attend the meeting.  

 
 
 408 E. Linn Street – retroactive review of window installation 

 
On January 3, 2024, I noticed that new windows were being installed in the front of the 
house, without prior HARB approval. I reached out to the homeowners via email on that 
same day and asked that they retroactively apply to HARB for review of the windows. The 
homeowners submitted the application within a few days. The two windows are Anderson 
400 Series Casement and 400 Series Picture. Additional information is included in your 
packet. 

• Homeowners, Liza and Matt Kelleher, are unable to attend the meeting.  
• The contractor is Long Run Enterprise out of Mill Hall.  

 

 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 77 of 193



Administrative Approvals: None 
 
Old Business: 
 
133 N. Allegheny Street (Bellefonte Art Museum) – art installation 
 
Lori Fisher, Deputy Director at the BAM, sent me an email after the last HARB meeting on 
1/9/2024 addressing the concerns about the information regarding the Linn House’s 
involvement with the Underground Railroad (UGRR). She would like to amended the 
verbiage on the art installation to remove information on the UGRR. The sculpture design 
will remain the same, but the verbiage will be updated as such: 
 

This public art project and public art in general adds meaning to our town and uniqueness 
to our community. We gain value through public art - cultural, social, and economic value. 
Having this public art piece achieves one of the Bellefonte Art Museum's major missions 
- making the arts accessible to all.  
 
The Underground Railroad occupies an important place in American History and in the 
local history of Bellefonte. This history serves as the inspiration for the "North Star" 
sculpture installation at the Bellefonte Art Museum. This North Star quilt pattern 
represents Polaris, or more commonly known as the North Star, which played a key role 
in helping freedom seekers find their way - a beacon to true north and freedom. 

 
Please see my email correspondence with Lori Fisher. I informed her that since this was an 
administrative approval and the sculpture design was not changing, she did not need to 
reapply. I don’t think this needs formal HARB approval, as the verbiage is not the prevue of 
HARB. However, I wanted to include this for your information.  
 
 
New Business: None 
 
Information / Discussion Items: 
 Update on Jessica Stuck and Phili Wu from Landmarks SGA will be here on Friday, 

January 26 to conduct a site walkthrough and also look at physical documentation 
that I have here at the office. Landmarks SGA intends to hold their first Public 
Meeting sometime end of February, TBD.  
 

 I’m working on the 2023 CLG reporting. If you have attended any professional 
development in the last year related to historic preservation, please send me that 
information and I will include it on our report.  
 

 I haven’t yet had a chance to talk with Frank Grumbine at PHMC about standards for 
Administrative Approvals or HARB involvement in evaluating accuracy of published 
historical information. He is scheduled to visit on February 14, so if I don’t talk to him 
before them, we will discuss these items at his site meeting.  

 
Adjournment: 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 78 of 193



BOROUGH OF BELLEFONTE
HISTORICAL ARCHITECTURAL 

REVIEW BOARD 
8:30 AM Tuesday January 23rd 2024 Meeting 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 79 of 193



Project 1: 225 W. Lamb Street

Project Applicant: Michael Irvin (resident), work done by Solar Shield

Character Defining Features & Setting: 
Historic Style: Gothic Revival
Year Built: unknown
Condition: fair 
Exterior Walls: vinyl siding
Windows: paired 2nd floor window 
Number Bays - 3; Number Stories – 2
Gutters were replaced in 2022 (no HARB approval)
New shed in 2010 (HARB approved)

Project Description:
On August 22, 2023 it was noticed that a new roof was put on the 
house. The shingle was replaced with a blue, corrugated metal roof. 
This roof was not approved by HARB. A letter to the homeowner was 
sent on that same day. The homeowner brought in a paper application 
and payment, but did not have any information about the roof. I was 
told to contact Solar Shield to get that information. It took a while to 
get a hold of Solar Shield and the necessary information. Included in 
your packet is the information I have to date. I asked the home owner 
and a representative from Solar Shield to be present at the meeting. 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 80 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 81 of 193



Project 2: 408 E. Linn Street 

Project Applicant: Liza & Matt Kelleher (homeowner), work done by Long Run 
Enterprise

Character Defining Features & Setting: (From 2009 description)
Built in the mid-twentieth century, this one-story brick ranch 
house is a more recent addition to the historic district.  It is 
characterized by its low gable roof, landscape windows on the 
front and side, and one car garage.  The house is clad in brick and 
has an asphalt shingled roof.  Windows on the side and rear – 
where they are not visible from the public right of way – are 
vinyl. 
2009 - New vinyl window installed in western gable end to 
accommodate new bedroom in what was the attic.

Project Description:
On January 3, 2024, I noticed that new windows were being 
installed in the front of the house, without prior HARB approval. I 
reached out to the homeowners via email on that same day and 
asked that they retroactively apply to HARB for review of the 
windows. 
The two windows are Anderson 400 Series Casement and 400 
Series Picture. Additional information is included in your packet. 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 82 of 193



Photos of the old windows that were replaced
Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 83 of 193



Photo of the new Anderson windows
(plus cute dog)

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 84 of 193



Applicable Secretary of the Interior’s 
Standards for Rehabilitation

6. Deteriorated historic features will be repaired rather than replaced. Where the severity 
of deterioration requires replacement of a distinctive feature, the new feature will match 
the old in design, color, texture and, where possible, materials. Replacement of missing 
features will be substantiated by documentary and physical evidence.

9. New additions, exterior alterations, or related new construction shall not destroy historic 
materials that characterize the property. The new work shall be differentiated from the old 
and shall be compatible with the massing, size, scale, and architectural features to protect 
the historic integrity of the property and its environment.

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 85 of 193



Bellefonte Art Museum Sculpture and updated verbiage 

This public art project and public art in 
general adds meaning to our town and 
uniqueness to our community. We gain 
value through public art - cultural, social, 
and economic value. Having this public art 
piece achieves one of the Bellefonte Art 
Museum's major missions - making the 
arts accessible to all.

The Underground Railroad occupies an 
important place in American History and in 
the local history of Bellefonte. This history 
serves as the inspiration for the "North 
Star" sculpture installation at the 
Bellefonte Art Museum. This North Star 
quilt pattern represents Polaris, or more 
commonly known as the North Star, which 
played a key role in helping freedom 
seekers find their way - a beacon to true 
north and freedom.

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 86 of 193



Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for Rehabilitation

1. A property will be used as it was historically or be given a new use that requires minimal change to its distinctive materials, features, spaces and 
spatial relationships.

2. The historic character of a property will be retained and preserved. The removal of distinctive materials or alteration of features, spaces and 
spatial relationships that characterize a property will be avoided.

3. Each property shall be recognized as a physical record of its time, place, and use. Changes that create a false sense of historical development, 
such as adding conjectural features or architectural elements from other buildings, shall not be undertaken.

4. Changes to a property that have acquired historic significance in their own right will be retained and preserved
5. Distinctive features, finishes, and construction techniques or examples of craftsmanship that characterize a historic property shall be preserved.
6. Deteriorated historic features shall be repaired rather than replaced. Where the severity of deterioration requires replacement of a distinctive 

feature, the new feature shall match the old in design, color, texture, and other visual qualities and, where possible, materials. Replacement of 
missing features shall be substantiated by documentary, physical, or pictorial evidence.

7. Chemical or physical treatments, such as sandblasting, that cause damage to historic materials shall not be used. The surface cleaning of 
structures, if appropriate, shall be undertaken using the gentlest means possible.

8. Archeological resources will be protected and preserved in place. If such resources must be disturbed, mitigation measures will be undertaken.
9. New additions, exterior alterations, or related new construction shall not destroy historic materials that characterize the property. The new work 

shall be differentiated from the old and shall be compatible with the massing, size, scale, and architectural features to protect the historic 
integrity of the property and its environment.

10. New additions and adjacent or related new construction shall be undertaken in such a manner that if removed in the future, the essential form 
and integrity of the historic property and its environment would be unimpaired.

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 87 of 193



 
HISTORICAL ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW BOARD 

BELLEFONTE BOROUGH 
(DRAFT) MEETING MINUTES 

January 23, 2024, 2023 - 8:30 a.m. 
236 West Lamb Street, Bellefonte, PA  16823 

www.bellefonte.net 
 

 
CALL TO ORDER:  
The January 23, 2024 regular meeting of the Bellefonte Borough Historical Architecture 
Review Board (HARB) was called to order at 8:34 a.m. Members met virtually via 
ZOOM.  
  
MEMBERS PRESENT:   Amy Kelchner 
    Maria Day 

Philip Ruth 
Mike Leakey 
Walt Schneider 
Gay Dunne 

 
ABSENT:    Sam McGinley 

Megan Tooker 
Marc McMaster 
 

STAFF MEMBERS:  Gina Thompson, HARB Administrator  
  
GUESTS:   Joanne Tosti-Vasey 
    Chuck Divey, Solar Shield  

  
Additions / Corrections to the Agenda: None 
  
Declaration of Conflict of Interest / Declaration of Ex Parte Communication: None  
  
Approval of the HARB meeting minutes:  
Day motioned to approve the minutes of the January 9,2024 meeting. Kelchner 
seconded. There was no discussion. Motion carried.   

  
Public Comment: None 

Project Review: 

225 W. Lamb Street – retroactive review of metal roof installation  
 

• On August 22, 2023 it was noticed that a new roof was installed on the house. 
The shingle was replaced with a blue, corrugated metal roof. This roof was not 
approved by HARB. A letter to the homeowner was sent on that same day. The 
homeowner brought in a paper application and payment, but did not have any 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 88 of 193

http://www.bellefonte.net/


information about the roof. He said that the contractor, Solar Shield, was 
supposed to get all the required permits for the project. I was told to contact Solar 
Shield to get that information. It took a while to get the product information from 
Solar Shield, but they were responsive and accommodating.  

• Chuck Divey from Solar Shield was present to discuss the project. 
• Homeowner, Michael Irvin, is unable to attend the meeting. 
• Gina agreed to send Mr. Divey the minutes from this meeting and any applicable 

Borough ordinances for his review.  
  

Schneider motioned to deny the application. Seconded by Dunne. Discussion included 
board members highlighting reasons for the denial of the application including color, 
materials and historical appropriateness. It was also discussed that it is the 
responsibility of both the homeowner and the contractor to follow area ordinances and 
regulations before installation of roofs or other property projects, and it was also 
mentioned that if HARB denies a project application, the project goes to Borough 
Council for final approval or denial, and a project can be retro-actively approved in that 
process. Roll call vote. (Yay = vote to deny the application). Motion to deny the 
application carried.  
 
Members Alternates  
Sam McGinley, Chair     AB Gay Dunne                         yay 
Megan Tooker                AB Robert Wagner (CRCA)   AB 
Walt Schneider          yay Amy Kelchner                   yay 
Mike Leakey                   yay  
Marc McMaster             AB  
Maria Day                      yay             
Philip Ruth                    yay  
 
 
 
 408 E. Linn Street – retroactive review of window installation 

• On January 3, 2024, Gina noticed that new windows were being installed in the 
front of the house, without prior HARB approval. Gina reached out to the 
homeowners via email on that same day and asked that they retroactively apply 
to HARB for review of the windows. The homeowners submitted the application 
within a few days.  

• The two windows are Anderson 400 Series Casement and 400 Series Picture. 
Additional information is included in tonight’s packet.  

• The house was built in 1955.  
• Homeowners, Liza and Matt Kelleher, were unable to attend the meeting.  
• The contractor is Long Run Enterprise of Mill Hall. 

 
Ruth motioned to deny the window installation. Seconded by Day. Discussion included 
HARB members discussing that the windows are not historically appropriate, and the 
style does not match the time period for the structure. A member asked if this house 
was part of the 1992 Historical District Expansion and Gina was not sure if it was 
included in that expansion or not. Roll call vote. Motion to deny the window installation 
carried.  

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 89 of 193



 
Members Alternates  
Sam McGinley, Chair     AB Gay Dunne                         yay 
Megan Tooker                AB Robert Wagner (CRCA)    AB 
Walt Schneider          yay Amy Kelchner                   yay 
Mike Leakey                   yay  
Marc McMaster             AB  
Maria Day                      yay             
Philip Ruth                    yay  
 
 
Administrative Approvals: NONE 
 
Old Business:  

• 133 N. Allegheny Street (Bellefonte Art Museum) – art installation Lori Fisher, 
Deputy Director at the Bellefonte Art Museum (BAM), sent Gina an email after 
the last HARB meeting on 1/9/2024 addressing the concerns about the 
information regarding the Linn House’s involvement with the Underground 
Railroad (UGRR). She would like to amend the verbiage on the art installation to 
remove information on the UGRR. The sculpture design will remain the same, 
but the verbiage will be updated as such: 

 
This public art project and public art in general adds meaning to our town and 
uniqueness to our community. We gain value through public art - cultural, social, and 
economic value. Having this public art piece achieves one of the Bellefonte Art 
Museum's major missions - making the arts accessible to all.  
 
The Underground Railroad occupies an important place in American History and in the  
local history of Bellefonte. This history serves as the inspiration for the "North Star"  
sculpture installation at the Bellefonte Art Museum. This North Star quilt pattern  
represents Polaris, or more commonly known as the North Star, which played a key role  
in helping freedom seekers find their way - a beacon to true north and freedom. 
 

Please see the included email correspondence with Lori Fisher. Gina informed 
her that since this was an administrative approval and the sculpture design was 
not changing, she did not need to reapply. Gina does not think this needs formal 
HARB approval, as the verbiage is not the prevue of HARB.  

 
 
New Business: NONE 

Information / Discussion Items: 

• Update on Jessica Stuck and Phili Wu from Landmarks - SGA will be here on 
Friday, January 26 to conduct a site walkthrough and also look at physical 
documentation that Gina has at the office. Landmarks SGA intends to hold their 
first Public Meeting sometime end of February, TBD.  
 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 90 of 193



• Gina is working on the 2023 CLG reporting. If a member has attended any 
professional development in the last year related to historic preservation, please 
send Gina that information and she will include it on our report. 
 

• Gina hasn’t had a chance to talk with Frank Grumbine at PHMC about standards 
for Administrative Approvals or HARB involvement in evaluating accuracy of 
published historical information. He is scheduled to visit on February 14, so if 
Gina doesn’t talk to him before them, we will discuss these items at his site 
meeting. 
 

• Amy Kelchner suggested a public education campaign to help the community 
and homeowners understand the point and importance of having a Historical 
Review Board in an area to help preserve historical structures.  

 
 
Adjournment:  
With no other business to come before HARB, the meeting adjourned at 9:44am.   
 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 91 of 193



ORDINANCE  02052024-01 

 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOROUGH OF BELLEFONTE AMENDING THE CODIFIED 

BOOK OF ORDINANCES, CHAPTER 35-17 AMENDMENTS TO FIRE DEPARTMENT 

AUTHORIZING THE LOGAN FIRE COMPANY NO.1 AND UNDINE FIRE COMPANY 

NO. 2 TO REMIT INVOICES TO INSURANCE CARRIERS FOR SERVICES 

RENDERED. 

 

 Be it enacted and ordained by the Council of the Borough of Bellefonte and it is hereby enacted 

and ordained by the authority of the same. 

 

SPECIFIC PROVISIONS 

 

Amend Chapter 35 to include the following provision: 

 

Add: SECTION 35-17 AUTHORIZING THE LOGAN FIRE COMPANY NO.1 AND UNDINE 

FIRE COMPANY NO. 2 TO REMIT INVOICES TO INSURANCE CARRIERS FOR 

SERVICES RENDERED. 

 

 WHEREAS, the Borough of Bellefonte, Council has determined that the Logan Fire 

Company No. 1 and Undine Fire Company No. 2, herein referred to as Bellefonte Fire 

Department, must have the ability to render fees for services provided to help defray the costs 

associated with providing such services.  

 

 WHEREAS, the Borough of Bellefonte is authorized by law and under the Hazardous 

Materials Emergency Planning and Response Act, 35 P.S. § 6022.201. 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED AND ORDAINED by the Council of Borough 

of Bellefonte, and it is hereby enacted and ordained by and with the authority of same as follows: 

 

Section 1. Bellefonte Fire Department shall have the authority and ability to obtain insurance 

information, from the individuals, businesses, and institutions who receive services of the Fire 

Department, for the purpose of billing for the same. 

 

Section 2. Bellefonte Fire Department shall obtain the appropriate insurance information for 

the purpose of billing for said services related to, but not limited to, vehicle accidents, rescues, 

structural fires, vehicle fires, and hazardous materials spills. 

 

Section 3. It is further provided that the Bellefonte Fire Department or third-party billing 

service, as an authorized agent, is hereby authorized to seek reimbursement from the appropriate 

insurance company/carrier’s policy limits. It is further provided that the said Bellefonte Fire 

Department shall not bill the individuals or entities directly for any services rendered except in 

the case of an intentional false alarm of a fire that was intentionally set and for which insurance 

coverage is not available.   

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 92 of 193



Section 4. Is it is hereby provided further that the Borough of Bellefonte and its authorized 

representatives are hereby authorized to assist Logan Fire Company No. 1 and Undine Fire 

Company No. 2, in receiving reimbursement for the collection of any amounts due to the 

Bellefonte Fire Department pursuant to its rendering public services as set forth above; and in 

particular, for appropriate reimbursement for any extraordinary services, including but not 

limited to abatement and disposition of hazardous materials, spills or the threat of spills of toxic 

chemicals, utility line breaks and leakages, or other imminent or received or possible threat to the 

health, safety or welfare of the Borough residents. This authorization shall include enforcement 

by the Borough by civil action, for the collection of any amounts due hereunder, including 

attorney fees or other relief that may be appropriate. 

 

Section 5. That provisions of this Ordinance are severable. If any part of this Ordinance is 

declared to be unconstitutional, illegal, or invalid, the validity of the remaining provisions shall 

be unaffected thereby. Borough of Bellefonte Council intends that this Ordinance would have 

been adopted, had such unconstitutional, illegal, or invalid part not been included herein.  

 

Section 6. Effective date. This Ordinance shall take effect upon adoption and publication 

according to law.  

 

ENACTED AND ORDAINED, into an Ordinance this 5th  day of February, 2024, by the Council 

of the Borough of Bellefonte in lawful session assembled. 

 

ATTEST:      BOROUGH OF BELLEFONTE: 

 

 

_______________________________   ____________________________ 

Ralph W. Stewart, Borough Manager     Kent Bernier 

Secretary         President of Council 

 

 

 AND NOW, to wit, this 5th day of February, 2024 the within and above Ordinance is approved. 

 

        __________________________ 

        Gene “Buddy” Johnson, Mayor 

 

 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 93 of 193



Memo 
To:  COUNCIL 

From:  Don Holderman 

Date:  February 5, 2024 

Re:  Streetscape Phase II  

 
On Thursday, January 18th, we had a project meeting with PennDOT officials and our 
engineer regarding Phase II (W. Bishop Street and S. Spring Street).  The meeting 
was to finalize details regarding the project, examine the timeline, discuss the 
estimate, etc. 
 
I am writing this memorandum to Council because we need to make a decision 
based on the cost estimate of the project.  The TASA grant we received is for the 
amount of $325,000.00.   Now that the design work has been completed, the 
engineer was able to estimate the cost of the entire project at $505,000.00 including 
$58,000.00 for contingency and another $58,000.00 for construction services 
(mandatory for a PennDOT-related project).  During the first phase, we only spent 
$4,000 of the contingency funds.  Working with PennDOT, we modified the 
inspection services from advertising and hiring a consultant to utilize a PennDOT 
inspector.  We anticipate this will save us approximately $20,000.00.  It would be 
normal and typical for us to run into this type of situation on any of our projects, and 
when we do, we normally would write the contract scope of work as alternates so we 
can pick and choose parts of the project that fit our budget.  Because PennDOT 
grants, as I have stated on numerous occasions, are very inflexible, we cannot do 
that in this instance.  Essentially, PennDOT grants are straightforward.  You 
advertise, open bids, accept the lowest bidder, and begin the project—no negotiation.  
If you don’t have enough funds to cover the low bid, you must re-scope the project 
and re-bid—costing time and money. 
 
Therefore, bringing us back to our project.  There are a couple of options I can think 
of to advise you: 
1. Go out for bids as drafted and hope the bids come in lower than expected (our 

Engineer stated he estimated the project rather liberally).  If they come in higher, 
we look to the Borough to cover the additional costs or we de-scope and re-
advertise.  If we were to do this, the project would move to 2025 for completion; or 

2. We de-scope now taking out the south side of West Bishop Street (in front of the 
Rural Water Association and the Dentistry).  By removing this section, the 
estimate drops by approximately $100,000.00.  Even with this, there is still no 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 94 of 193



guarantee we will be within our budget.  However, based on the last bids, we 
think there is a good possibility we will be close (within $50,000.00) 

3. The final option is to do what we are doing in line 2 and also remove from the 
project a portion of the sidewalk near High Street (in front of the Decker Building).  
We can de-scope enough to ensure as best as one possibly can, that the bids 
come in under budget. 

 
If we de-scope the project too much and the bids come in low (say less than the 
$325,000.00 - $40,000.00 (for inspection) = $285,000.00, we cannot ask the 
contractor to put the work back in the project---we lose that opportunity. 
 
Based on the discussion I had with our Engineer, if the Borough is willing to 
potentially add money to the project should the bids come in higher than anticipated, 
we recommend going with Option 2. 
 
If the Borough wants no risk and wants the grant to cover the entire project, then 
option 3 would be the recommendation. 
 
The east side, which was a direct line from W. Bishop St to High St. cost 
approximately $198,000.00.  If bids are similar, that would leave us $87,000.00 for 
the area in front of the Waffle Shop to the corner of Smoker Express plus a small 
escalation factor for the equivalent concrete poured in Phase I. 
 
My recommendation is to choose Option 2, maximize the overall work, and hope we 
get bids equivalent to Phase I.  If we do, our Engineer believes we will be very close 
to maximizing the entire $325K grant funds as well as doing as much concrete 
pouring as possible. 
 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 95 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 96 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 97 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 98 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 99 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 100 of 193



1/22/24, 3:18 PM Mail - Alyssa Doherty - Outlook

https://outlook.office.com/mail/inbox/id/AAQkAGY4NzRlN2MxLWNjNTMtNDE4MC04OWNjLTQwMGRiYzJhYWNhMgAQAJR%2Bk533c0X0p3sYAFl7… 1/2

Fwd: parking sign prices

Buddy Johnson <Bjohnson@bellefontepa.gov>
Thu 1/11/2024 9:33 AM
To: Alyssa Doherty <adoherty@bellefontepa.gov> 

3 attachments (68 KB)
VETERAN PARKING ONLY.pdf; image001.jpg; image002.jpg;

Can I get this on the 2/5/25 meeting agenda?  I would like council approval to put a veterans parking
only sign downtown near the courthouse. Chief said this would be doable. 
Thanks!!

Begin forwarded message:

From: Julie Brooks <jbrooks@bellefontepa.gov>
Date: January 8, 2024 at 1:54:05 PM EST
To: Buddy Johnson <Bjohnson@bellefontepa.gov>
Subject: parking sign prices

Hello,
Here are the prices and sign example I have for a parking sign, below is the e-mail I received from
Bradco.
Thanks,
Julie
 
 
12”X18” (PLAIN) $25.20 EA.     (plus 49.40 for a 2”x 8’ post or 55.55 for a 2” x 9’ post)
12”x18” (w/ detailed background) $35.00 ea.
 
I also have a�ached a sample I have done in the past. This would fall under the plain sign pricing.
Any ques�ons let me know.
 
Thanks!
 
Cricket Sheets
80 Old Mills Rd
Towanda, PA 18848
570.265.6167
 

 
 
Julie Brooks
Bellefonte Borough
236 West Lamb Street
Bellefonte, PA 16823

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 101 of 193



1/22/24, 3:18 PM Mail - Alyssa Doherty - Outlook

https://outlook.office.com/mail/inbox/id/AAQkAGY4NzRlN2MxLWNjNTMtNDE4MC04OWNjLTQwMGRiYzJhYWNhMgAQAJR%2Bk533c0X0p3sYAFl7… 2/2

(814) 355-1501 ext 220

 
 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 102 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 103 of 193



01/25/2024

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 104 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 105 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 106 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 107 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 108 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 109 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 110 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 111 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 112 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 113 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 114 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 115 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 116 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 117 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 118 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 119 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 120 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 121 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 122 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 123 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 124 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 125 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 126 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 127 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 128 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 129 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 130 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 131 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 132 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 133 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 134 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 135 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 136 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 137 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 138 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 139 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 140 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 141 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 142 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 143 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 144 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 145 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 146 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 147 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 148 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 149 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 150 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 151 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 152 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 153 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 154 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 155 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 156 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 157 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 158 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 159 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 160 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 161 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 162 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 163 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 164 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 165 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 166 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 167 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 168 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 169 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 170 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 171 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 172 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 173 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 174 of 193



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 175 of 193



Chapter 35 
Fire Department 

[HISTORY: Adopted by the Borough Council of the Borough of Bellefonte 4-6-2009 by Ord. No. 
040609-02; amended in its entirety 8-19-2019. Subsequent amendments noted where applicable.] 

GENERAL REFERENCES 

Fire Prevention Bureau — See Ch. 39. 
False alarms — See Ch. 185, Art. I. 

Fire limits — See Ch. 294. 

Conduct at fires — See Ch. 302. 

 

§ 35-1 Establishment; certificate of recognition of fire companies. 
A. All fire companies now in existence and recognized in Bellefonte Borough as belonging to and being a 

part of the Bellefonte Fire Department of Bellefonte Borough, and any which may hereafter be 
organized or chartered and recognized by Bellefonte Borough, shall together form the Bellefonte Fire 
Department of Bellefonte Borough. 

B. Each of the companies now recognized as forming a part of the Bellefonte Fire Department of 
Bellefonte Borough shall be issued a certificate of recognition by Bellefonte Borough Council, signed 
by the Bellefonte Borough Council President and attested by the Bellefonte Borough Secretary, on 
which the corporate or common seal of Bellefonte Borough is affixed. A similar certificate may be 
granted by Bellefonte Borough Council to any new company which may be formed and thus recognized 
by Bellefonte Borough Council as forming a part of the Bellefonte Fire Department and which shall be 
required to comply with the same conditions applicable to the present companies. 

§ 35-2 Establishment and duties of Bellefonte Fire Department Executive Committee (BFDEC). 
A. The purpose of this Committee shall include, but not be limited to, the following:  

(1) Review and recommend changes in the Bellefonte Borough codes pertaining to the Bellefonte Fire 
Department, the Bureau of Fire Prevention and Fire Codes. 

(2) Establish and enforce Bellefonte Fire Department standard operating procedures and/or guidelines. 

(3) Keep Bellefonte Borough Council informed relative to the Bellefonte Fire Department; oversee the 
operation of Bellefonte Fire Department and provide assistance to the Bellefonte Fire Department Chief 
as needed. 

(4) Establish a ten-year strategic plan for the Bellefonte Fire Department. 

(5) Review and approve all expenditures for major purchases as defined as those that require advertised bids 
under the Pennsylvania Borough Code. 

(6) Review and recommend the annual budget for the Bellefonte Fire Department. 

(7) Ensure that the Bellefonte Fire Department is functioning in an efficient and fiscally responsible 
fashion. 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 176 of 193



B. Meetings of this Committee will be conducted at least once every other month, or more often if needed, 
to take care of business, and will be held in the Bellefonte Borough Building whenever possible. 

C. The Bellefonte Fire Department Executive Committee is comprised of the following members:  

(1) Benner Township Supervisor, Spring Township Supervisor, Marion Township Supervisor, or, in each 
respective instance, his/her designee, Bellefonte Councilperson Safety Chairman, Chair of the 
BFDEC.Representatives from Benner Township, Spring Township, Marion Township, and Bellefonte 
Borough with each appointing their respective backups.  

(2) Bellefonte Fire Department Chief (only votes in the event of a tie).The Bellefonte Fire Department 
Chief/ Acting Chair for the BFDEC. The BFDEC can appoint a Co-Chair for the Committee if so 
desired.  

(3) Undine Company Chief. 

(4) Logan Company Chief. 

(5) Undine Company Deputy Chief and two at-large members of the fire company. 

(6) Logan Company Deputy Chief and two at-large members of the fire company. 

D. Meetings can be called by the Bellefonte Fire Department Chief, Borough Manager, Bellefonte Borough 
Safety Chair, or at the request of four or more members of the Board.  

(1) A quorum consists of a minimum of seven voting members excluding the Bellefonte Fire Department 
Chief. Decisions are made by a simple majority vote. 

(2) The members-at-large of the fire companies (5 and 6) shall be appointed based on criteria established 

(3) Effective January 2013, the following criteria shall be used by each fire company for selecting their 
respective members-at-large to sit as active members for the BFDEC:  

(a) Must have been an active member of either company for a minimum of four consecutive years. An 
active member includes a firefighter, fire officer, or administrative officer; 

(b) Must have been a firefighter technician level as defined by the Bellefonte Fire Department SOGs during 
their time; 

(c) One at-large member from each company may be appointed solely based on outside qualifications 
without the need to meet the minimum firefighter requirements. 

(d) The Committee member must maintain membership status within his/her respective organization; 

(e) The Committee member cannot miss more than 25% of meetings, which includes special meetings; 

(f) The Committee member can hold successive terms if he/she meets the above criteria; 

(g) Each appointed member will declare at the November meeting if he/she is interested in serving the 
following year. 

§ 35-3 Authority of Bellefonte Fire Department Chief and Deputies. 
A. The Bellefonte Fire Department shall at all times be under the direction, control, and supervision of an 

officer who shall be titled the Bellefonte Fire Department Chief. The Company Chief of each of the 
recognized fire companies, now or hereafter recognized as part of the Bellefonte Fire Department, shall 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 177 of 193



be Deputies to the Bellefonte Fire Department Chief. The companies and their subordinate officers shall 
at all times be subject to the Bellefonte Fire Department Chief's order and direction. All changes or 
repairs to any fire apparatus or equipment shall be authorized by the order of the Bellefonte Fire 
Department Chief, who shall also authorize the purchase of all supplies by signing all vouchers for said 
purchases. 

B. Company Chiefs from both companies shall submit to the Bellefonte Fire Department Executive 
Committee a list of fire officers (Deputy Chiefs, Assistant Chiefs, and Captains). 

§ 35-4 Tenure of Bellefonte Fire Department Chief. 
A. The Bellefonte Fire Department Executive Committee (BFDEC) shall recommend for appointment to 

Bellefonte Borough Council the Bellefonte Fire Department Chief to a three-year term, commencing 
July 1. The initial term shall be commenced in the year 2012. Prior to the expiration of The Bellefonte 
Fire Department Chief's term on June 30 of the third year of the term, the BFDEC shall announce the 
vacancy by posting an announcement along with the job description during the month of April. At the 
May meeting, the BFDEC shall review the list of applicants' qualifications,  make a determination, and 
forward a recommendation to the Bellefonte Borough Council for the appointment of a Bellefonte Fire 
Department Chief for a three-year term. Bellefonte Borough Council shall vote on the recommendation 
at one of their two June meetings. With Bellefonte Borough Council's approval, the appointment shall 
become effective July 1. An incumbent Bellefonte Fire Department Chief is eligible to reapply at the 
end of a three-year term for up to no more than one additional term for a total of six consecutive years. 
Should a Bellefonte Fire Department Chief be selected for two consecutive terms or six years, the 
individual is not eligible for any further appointment without a minimum three-year hiatus as Bellefonte 
Fire Department Chief. The exception to this qualification is if there are no qualified applicants to fill 
the vacancy. 

B. The qualifications for the Bellefonte Fire Department Chief shall be as follows:  

(1) Must be an active member of the Bellefonte Fire Department for a minimum of six years; 

(2) Must have been a chief officer for at least three years, with one of those years as the ranking Company 
Chief of one of the Bellefonte fire companies; 

(3) Must be certified as either ProBoard or IFSAC Firefighter-1, and complete certification as either 
ProBoard or IFSAC Firefighter-2 by the completion of the individual's first term. 

(4) Must have successful, completed ICS 100, ICS 200, ICS 700, ICS 800, and ICS 300;Must have 
successfully completed the “Current ICS Leadership Level (Example ICS 300). 

(5) Must have successfully completed a course on Incident Safety Officer training. 

(6) Must be certified as either ProBoard or IFSAC to the level of Haz-Mat Operations; or must have 
obtained the current operational level standard and/or certification at the operational hazardous materials 
level. 

(7) Must be a legal resident within a radius extending 6.75 miles from the center of Bellefonte Borough. 
(Radius will be from the Court House to the maximum distance of primary coverage area based on 
Centre County GIS.)Must establish/ maintain legal residency within the Bellefonte Fire Protection 
District or reside within 2.5 miles of its border. 

C. All eligible candidates wishing to be considered for the position of Bellefonte Fire Department Chief 
will be required to submit a cover letter, resume, and supporting documentation outlining their 
qualifications during the posting timeline, which will be the month of April on the year ending a three-
year term. 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 178 of 193



D. All application packets will be reviewed by the selection committee, which is comprised of three 
members of the BFDEC (two members to be appointed by the Company Chiefs and the third member to 
be appointed by a municipal representative). 

E. In the event that no one meets the qualifications for Bellefonte Fire Department Chief, the BFDEC has 
the authority to reopen and/or extend the submission period with revised criteria. 

F. The Bellefonte Fire Department Chief may appoint a support staff as necessary. 

§ 35-5 Filling of vacancies in the office of Bellefonte Fire Department Chief; declaration of vacancy. 
A. In the event of the vacancy of the office of Bellefonte Fire Department Chief for any reason, the BFDEC 

must convene a special meeting within seven working days. Such vacancy shall be filled for the 
unexpired term by a recommendation of the BFDEC This recommendation shall be forwarded to 
Bellefonte Borough Council within two weeks for approval. The BFDEC has seven days to name an 
interim Bellefonte Fire Department Chief and three months to select a new Department Chief. 

B. The Bellefonte Fire Department Chief position description is on file at the Municipal Building and shall 
be included in any vacancy announcement package. 

§ 35-6 Investigation of complaints against Bellefonte Fire Department Chief. 
Whenever a complaint is made against the Bellefonte Fire Department Chief, the complaint shall be made in 
writing with the required signature. The complaint shall be addressed to the BFDEC The BFDEC will take 
the necessary measures to investigate the complaint, appointing municipal members to investigate. Recusal is 
mandatory where a conflict of interest exists by virtue of the Investigative Committee member's professional, 
financial, or personal relationship with the Bellefonte Fire Department Chief. The Bellefonte Borough 
Council, upon receiving a signed complaint and recommendation of the BFDEC, may place the Bellefonte 
Fire Department Chief on administrative suspension pending investigation. If an investigation is sustained 
and appropriate to do so, the BFDEC shall recommend the dismissal of the Bellefonte Fire Department Chief 
from office to the Bellefonte Borough Council for a decision. If dismissal occurs pursuant to this section, the 
BFDEC will recommend an interim Bellefonte Fire Department Chief to Bellefonte Borough Council for 
approval of recommendation to fill the unexpired term. 

§ 35-7 Oath of Bellefonte Fire Department Chief and Deputies. 
The Bellefonte Fire Department Chief and Deputies, when appointed to such offices, shall be sworn into 
office by the Mayor to perform their respective duties with fidelity and to the best of their ability. 

§ 35-8 Control of firefighters, apparatus, and equipment at fires. 
A. The Bellefonte Fire Department Chief shall be responsible for the direction of all firefighters and all fire 

apparatus and equipment at the time of incidents. The Bellefonte Fire Department Chief may delegate 
responsibility to either the Fire Company Chief or their authorized fire ground officers. 

B. The Bellefonte Fire Department Chief may suspend any member for such period as he may deem 
proper, and not to exceed 90 days, subject to an appeal by such member to the BFDEC, which shall 
thereupon investigate the circumstances of such suspension and recommend concurrence of the action of 
the Bellefonte Fire Department Chief or reinstatement of the member so suspended. Persons sitting on 
the BFDEC who supervise or work under the accused party, or who initiated a complaint against the 
suspended member, shall recuse themselves from participating in such investigation. Recusal is also 
mandatory where a conflict of interest exists by virtue of the Committee member's professional, 
financial, or personal relationship with the accused party. 

§ 35-9 Exclusion of persons interfering with functions of the Fire Department at fires. 
The Bellefonte Fire Department Chief, or his/her delegate, is hereby authorized, with the aid of the Police 
Department and the Fire Police, hereinafter provided for, to prevent every person from in any manner 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 179 of 193



interfering with the functions of the Bellefonte Fire Department while on duty at an emergency scene. 

§ 35-10 Inspections by Bellefonte Department Chief; reports. 
A. It shall be the duty of the Bellefonte Fire Department Chief to verify through Company Chief 

certification that the fire apparatus has been inspected based on the recommendation of the manufacturer 
and state mandates. It shall be the duty of the Bellefonte Fire Department Chief to verify through the 
Company Chief certification that fire equipment has been inspected based on the recommendation of the 
manufacturer of said fire equipment. Records of such tests shall be maintained by each respective 
company Chief for a minimum of five years. 

B. At the first Bellefonte Borough Council meeting in November each year, the Bellefonte Fire Department 
Chief shall appear before Council and present a report detailing the state of the Bellefonte Fire 
Department, the number and type of response incidents, the condition of apparatus and key equipment, 
personnel status, and proposed major purchases for the upcoming year. 

§ 35-11 Drivers, operators and members. 
A. By February 15 of each year, the Bellefonte Fire Department Chief shall submit to the Bellefonte 

Borough Police Department, for a background check, the names and operator's license numbers of 
members requesting to be qualified drivers and operators of fire apparatus. After the background check 
has been completed, a copy of the list shall be given to the Bellefonte Borough Manager for the addition 
of those approved names to the insurance records. Each Company Chief shall be responsible for the 
training and testing of the operators of such companies. 

B. The Bellefonte Fire Department Chief shall submit a list of members of such companies who are 
qualified to act as drivers and operators of fire apparatus to Bellefonte Borough Council, Bellefonte 
Police Department, Spring Township Police Department, and State Police entities within the Bellefonte 
Fire Department's jurisdiction. 

§ 35-12 Rules and regulations. 
The Bellefonte Fire Department Chief and the Company Chiefs of the Bellefonte Fire Companies, with the 
assistance of the BFDEC, shall make such rules and regulations as they deem proper and necessary to 
regulate the work of the recognized fire companies in the Department during training, upon arriving at 
incidents, while remaining at incidents and while returning from incidents and in caring for and preserving all 
property, apparatus, and equipment of the Bellefonte Fire Department. 

§ 35-13 Appointment and duties of Fire Police. 
A. The Bellefonte Fire Department Chief shall annually appoint the Fire Police Captain and those members 

who are eligible to be and wish to be members of the Fire Department Fire Police. It shall be the 
primary duty of those fire police officers to aid in traffic and crowd control to secure property as needed 
and to assist the Bellefonte Fire Department Chief during emergencies as needed and any other duties 
assigned by the Bellefonte Department Chief or the incident commander. 

B. Each fire police officer shall at all times be subject to and under the order and direction of each 
respective Company Chief. 

§ 35-14 Oath of members of Fire Police. 
Every member of the Fire Police shall be sworn before the Bellefonte Mayor. 

§ 35-15 Conditions for removal of fire apparatus and equipment from Borough. 
At no time and under no circumstances shall any truck, fire apparatus, or other equipment belonging to the 
Bellefonte Fire Department be removed from the Bellefonte Fire Department primary coverage area without 
the consent of the Bellefonte Fire Department Chief, unless the same is required to assist at a fire in a 
neighboring municipality, in which event the following regulations shall apply:  

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 180 of 193



A. The Bellefonte Fire Department Chief and the company Chiefs are jointly responsible for the instruction 
of all officers of the Bellefonte Fire Department in such a manner that the exercise of good judgment 
with respect to the authority granted in the preceding subsections will be assured so that trucks, fire 
apparatus, and other equipment not necessary to fulfill the fire protection responsibility at any given fire 
will be available in reserve to meet other emergencies. 

§ 35-16 Bellefonte Borough Council members ineligible for election as Department Chief. 
A member of the Bellefonte Borough Council shall not be eligible for the election to the office of Bellefonte 
Fire Department Chief of the Bellefonte Fire Department during the term of office for which he/she has been 
elected. No member of Bellefonte Borough Council who belongs to a Bellefonte Fire Company in the 
primary response area shall be appointed to the Bellefonte Fire Executive Committee and shall abstain from 
casting a vote at a Bellefonte Borough Council Meeting related to a motion affecting the Bellefonte Fire 
Department. 

 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 181 of 193



 
FINANCIAL SECURITY AND PERFORMANCE SECURITY AGREEMENT 

 
 

This Financial Security and Performance Security 

Agreement(hereinafter "Agreement") is entered into this    day 

of  , 2024, by and between Bellefonte Borough, acting through its 

governing body (hereinafter called "BOROUGH”) and Bellefonte Area 

School District (hereinafter called "DISTRICT"). 

WHEREAS, DISTRICT has an approved land development or 

subdivision plan (hereinafter called "Plan") as such terms are 

defined in the Municipalities Planning Code, Act of July 31, 1968, 

P.L. 805, No. 247, as reenacted and amended, 53 P.S. Section10101, 

et seq., (hereinafter the “MPC”) designated as 

“_________________________________” (hereinafter called 

"Development"), which was approved by BOROUGH conditioned on 

DISTRICT providing the proper improvement guarantee; and 

WHEREAS, the DISTRICT in accordance with the approved Plan 

is required to install or have installed on its behalf certain 

improvements for off-site improvements required through the 

PennDot process as more specifically described in Appendix "A" 

attached hereto (hereinafter called "Improvements"); and 

WHEREAS, in accordance with the provisions of the MPC and in 

order to guarantee that the Improvements shall be completed as 

described above, DISTRICT has elected to provide financial 

security in the form of a Line of Credit with Reliance Bank to be 

utilized by the Borough to cover the cost of the Improvements, as 

determined by the submission to BOROUGH of a cost estimate 

prepared and certified by DISTRICT’s 

professional engineer (licensed in the Commonwealth of 

Pennsylvania) to be a fair and reasonable estimate of the cost to 

complete the Improvements. 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 182 of 193



NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the approval of the Plan 

by BOROUGH, and the mutual promises contained herein, BOROUGH 

and DISTRICT agree as follows: 

1. The total amount of the financial security required to be 

provided by DISTRICT to guarantee the Improvements (hereinafter 

the "Security Amount"), shall be _________________ Dollars 

($____________.00), which amount the parties 

 
agree equal one hundred ten percent (110%) of the cost of 

completing the remaining Improvements. 

2. DISTRICT shall, forthwith upon execution of this 

Agreement by the DISTRICT and BOROUGH, cause/submit a Line of 

Credit from Reliance Bank (hereinafter “Security”) (equal to the 

amount of the Security Amount), for the benefit of BOROUGH in 

accordance with the provisions and purposes of this Agreement, 

in order to guarantee that the Improvements shall be completed 

and installed in accordance with the Plan and all applicable 

ordinances of BOROUGH and regulations of the Commonwealth of 

Pennsylvania, Department of Transportation. 

3. The Line of Credit shall be held with/issued by a 

financial institution which is authorized to conduct such 

business within the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania within the 

meaning of Section 

509(d) of the MPC, 53 P.S. §10509(d). 
 

4. In the event that DISTRICT has not completed and 

installed all of the Improvements as hereby guaranteed within 

twelve (12) months from the date of this Agreement, or within 

such extended period of time as may hereafter be agreed upon 

in writing by BOROUGH and DISTRICT, BOROUGH may make a claim 

against the Security for payment to BOROUGH of funds from the 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 183 of 193



Line of Credit not to exceed the Security Amount in order 

that BOROUGH may make or cause the Improvements to be made. 

5. All portions of the Security paid over to BOROUGH from 

the Line of Credit shall be used by BOROUGH solely for the 

purpose of completing and installing the Improvements as herein 

guaranteed and for no other purpose. Any moneys paid to BOROUGH 

from the Security in excess of the actual and reasonable cost of 

completing the Improvements shall be refunded by BOROUGH to 

DISTRICT. 

6. No funds paid from the Security to BOROUGH shall in any 

way be construed as a loan to BOROUGH, nor, except as 

specifically provided herein, obligate BOROUGH to repay such 

funds. 

7. In the event that the Security is insufficient to cover 

the reasonable and actual cost of completing the Improvements, 

nothing herein shall be construed to limit the remedies available 

to BOROUGH. 

8. When the Improvements have been completed and installed 

as herein guaranteed, DISTRICT shall provide a notice of 

completion to BOROUGH and the BOROUGH Engineer as provided by 

Section 509(j) of the MPC, 53 P.S. §10509(j). BOROUGH shall, 

within the time limits prescribed by Section 509(j) of the MPC, 53 

P.S. §10509(j), provide to DISTRICT written notification of 

BOROUGH's approval or rejection of the Improvements. 

9. From time to time as work on the Improvements proceeds, 

DISTRICT may make written requests to BOROUGH, pursuant to 

Section 509(j) of the MPC, 53 P.S. §10509(j), for release of 

portions of the Security. BOROUGH shall, within the time limits 

prescribed by Section 509(j) of the MPC, 53 P.S. §10509(j), 

provide to DISTRICT written notification of the amount BOROUGH 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 184 of 193



has authorized to be released from the Security pursuant to 

DISTRICT's request. 

10. In no event shall the financial institution incur 

liability to any party pursuant to this Agreement exceed the 

Security in force. The bonding company or financial institution 

shall not incur any liability whatsoever for acts taken or omitted 

in good faith reliance upon any instrument or document reasonably 

believed by Issuer to be genuine, to be truthful, to have been 

signed or presented by a proper person, and to conform with the 

provisions of this Agreement. 

11. BOROUGH shall in its reasonable discretion determine 

whether the Improvements are constructed and installed in 

accordance with the Plan and the aforesaid ordinances and 

regulations. 

12. Upon completion of the Improvements, and as a condition 

precedent to the acceptance of the Improvements by BOROUGH, the 

DISTRICT, at its expense, agrees to: 

a. tender to BOROUGH a Legal Description and drawing for 

the proposed right-of-way for the Improvements; and 

b. submit to BOROUGH an affidavit, Waiver of Mechanics 

Liens or such other satisfactory evidence as BOROUGH 

may require, that all labor, material, rentals, 

contractors and subcontractors used, supplied, 

furnished or employed in the construction of the 

Improvements have been paid. 

13. DISTRICT shall upon the final and full completion of 

the Improvements and/or part thereof as herein set forth, 

guarantee the work, material, construction, and installation 

performed pursuant to this Agreement, and shall remedy, without 

cost to BOROUGH, any defects which may develop therein during a 

period of eighteen (18) months from the date of completion and 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 185 of 193



acceptance of the work performed hereunder, and shall deliver or 

cause to be delivered to BOROUGH, maintenance security in the 

amount of fifteen percent (15%) of the actual cost for the 

installation of the Improvements for a term of eighteen (18) 

months, in accordance with Section 509(k) of the MPC, 53 P.S. 

§10509(k),in a form satisfactory to BOROUGH and in compliance 

with BOROUGH's requirements for the acceptance of the foregoing 

Improvements by BOROUGH. 

14. In the event of either party bringing an action or 

proceeding against the other party in relation to a dispute 

arising out of this Agreement, the liable party shall, in addition 

to all damages available to the prevailing party, at law or in 

equity, be liable for any and all attorneys fees, costs, and other 

similar charges incurred by the prevailing party in connection 

with the action or proceeding. 
15. The DISTRICT agrees to reimburse BOROUGH for 

reasonable engineering and legal services necessitated for the 

review of the DISTRICT’S documents and inspection of the 

Improvements. 

16. The DISTRICT shall provide BOROUGH with a minimum of 

two (2) working days’ advance notice of its intent to construct 

any Improvements. 

17. This Agreement is executed in and shall be construed in 

accordance with the laws of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania and 

shall be binding upon and inure to the benefits of the parties 

hereto, and their heirs, representatives, successors, and assigns. 

18. Neither this Agreement nor the obligations of the 

parties set forth herein shall be modified or changed except by 

written agreement executed by all parties hereto. 

19. Each person whose signature appears below represents 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 186 of 193



that he or she has been duly authorized in accordance with law to 

execute this Agreement with legally binding effect, in conformity 

with the Uniform Written Obligation Act of 1927, upon the party 

represented. 
 

[signatures on next page] 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 187 of 193



FOR BELLEFONTE BOROUGH 
 
ATTEST: 

 
 
 

, Chairman 
 
 
 
 

 
 
ATTEST: 

FOR BELLEFTONTE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT(DISTRICT) 

 
 
 

By                            

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 188 of 193



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
February 2, 2024 
 
Mr. James Saylor, PE, PTOE 
Principal Transportation Planner 
Centre County Metropolitan Planning Organization (CCMPO) 
Centre Regional Planning Agency 
2643 Gateway Drive, Suite 4 
State College, PA  16801 
 
Dear Mr. Saylor: 
 
Subject:  Bellefonte Borough letter of support for the Benner Pike Corridor (SR 0150) for 

future planning funds and TIP consideration 
 
Bellefonte Borough recognizes that the Benner Pike Corridor has become a focal point for land 
development and traffic activity, and that increased traffic along the roadway has created concerns 
about traffic capacity and congestion that will ultimately be consumed by neighboring Spring Township 
and Bellefonte Borough.  
 
The Bellefonte Borough, in conjunction with the Nittany Valley Joint Planning Commission, strongly 
supports the request of the CCMPO to consider the Benner Pike Corridor (SR 0150) in Benner Township, 
Centre County for both supplemental Planning Funds for a corridor study to identify needs and 
improvement strategies and the addition of Benner Pike to the CCMPO Long Range Transportation Plan 
with consideration in upcoming updates to the Transportation Improvement Program (TIP). 
 
The Safe Routes to Parks Action Plan (2023) outlined the safety and crash data of increased traffic in the 
Water Street (PA 150) corridor between Willowbank Street / Reynolds Avenue and Willowbank Street / 
Mill Street and Stoney Batter intersections. The influx of development along the Benner Pike (SR 0150) 
corridor has already impacted traffic safety concerns and will continue as development progresses. 
Bellefonte Borough is committed to exploring traffic calming measures to mitigate traffic hazards for 
pedestrian and bicyclists, while also supporting the need for continued development in the Nittany 
Valley Region.  
 
Bellefonte Borough supports the Benner Pike Corridor (SR 0150) project for consideration on future 
CCMPO planning funds.  
 
Sincerely,  
 
 
 
Bellefonte Borough Council  
 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 189 of 193



November 14, 2023 
 
Mr. James Saylor, PE, PTOE 
Principal Transporta�on Planner 
Centre County Metropolitan Planning Organiza�on (CCMPO) 
Centre Regional Planning Agency 
2643 Gateway Drive, Suite 4 
State College, PA  16801 
 
Gree�ngs Mr. Saylor: 
 
The purpose of this leter is to request the following in rela�on to the Benner Pike Corridor (SR 0150) in 
Benner Township, Centre County in the area of interest between Interstate 99 and Stonecrest Drive: 
 

1. Supplemental Planning Funds for a corridor study to iden�fy needs and improvement strategies. 
2. Addi�on of Benner Pike to the CCMPO Long Range Transporta�on Plan with considera�on in 

upcoming updates to the Transporta�on Improvement Program (TIP). 
 
This request was ini�ated by the Benner Township Board of Supervisors and is supported by the Nitany 
Valley Joint Planning Commission (NVJPC), as veted at their November 16, 2023 mee�ng. 
 
The Benner Pike Corridor has become a focal point for land development and traffic ac�vity, much as 
an�cipated by the NVJPC Comprehensive Plan.  However, recent traffic studies show that traffic volumes 
on the Benner Pike are hovering near the roadway’s traffic capacity, with long lines of traffic and 
conges�on encountered during peak hours at intersec�ons.  Addi�onal new traffic from development 
projects in Benner Township and neighboring Spring Township and Bellefonte Borough is expected to 
consume the remaining capacity. 
 
As such, the traffic issues are both regionally and locally generated.  Prior to the COVID-pandemic, the 
vast majority of traffic on Benner Pike was regionally generated and used Benner Pike as a commuter 
connector between Bellefonte and I-99.  About 90 percent of the peak hour corridor traffic had both 
origin and des�na�on outside of the area of interest. 
 
However, currently proposed land development projects encompass 360 new homes, 8 commercial/ 
office lots, 2 hotels, 1 car dealership, 1 car wash, 1 super convenience store, and a 1 million square foot 
distribu�on center.  These known projects are projected to add 14,000 new daily trips to the current 
21,000 on the Benner Pike.  Addi�onal developable parcels—including 9 ready-to-develop industrial lots, 
200+ acres of greenfield, and various redevelopment areas—have their primary access via Benner Pike 
and will add traffic to that total.  This traffic is locally generated with an origin and/or des�na�on within 
the area of interest. 
 
To date, developers are installing and contribu�ng to transporta�on improvements in the corridor.  Two 
new traffic signals, intersec�on turn lanes, signal mast arms, signal heads, pedestrian/ADA 
improvements, and a cash contribu�on to signal communica�ons upgrades have been provided by the 
Paradise Shoppes (Giant Shopping Center) and Bellefonte Warehouse.  PennDOT has also acknowledged 
the corridor capacity concerns and has placed the Benner Pike on their Regional Opera�ons Plan, placing 
it at the front of the line for certain grant funds. 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 190 of 193



 
Future developers will be asked to contribute as well.  During 2023, Centre County Planning and Benner 
Township worked together to facilitate a series of discussions on the transporta�on and traffic outlook 
for the fast-developing segment of Benner Pike (SR 150) north of I-99.  In Spring 2023, we held a 
“private-side” discussion with the developers and their site and traffic engineers.  In Summer 2023, we 
held a “public-side” discussion with township officials, the MPO staff and PennDOT District 2 traffic unit.  
The primary goal of these mee�ngs was to start a process that iden�fies big picture corridor needs and 
some overarching strategies for TIS mi�ga�on, given the current and constrained 3-lane Benner Pike 
sec�on.  When talking with the developers, we discussed raising the corridor condi�ons/needs with 
agency and public officials (TIP project) and encouraging innova�ve thinking about traffic impact 
mi�ga�on.  We o�en think of mi�ga�on as specific projects that solve an issue now (turn lanes, new 
signals, etc.).  And while these will s�ll be needed, there are other technology, maintenance, and 
infrastructure improvements that can enable and contribute to a larger project. 
 
Regardless, in the near-term, we suggest that significant investment in traffic capacity will be needed on 
the Benner Pike to sustain regional traffic mobility and maintain the viability of the corridor for ongoing 
development and redevelopment.  Our request for a study followed by a prospec�ve TIP project is 
intended to assure the CCMPO that investment in the corridor is jus�fied and done in a cost-effec�ve 
manner.  The request is also proac�ve in evalua�ng the ongoing land development traffic studies and 
an�cipa�ng the traffic constraints of the Benner Pike Corridor. 
 
Developer projects: 
 
Paradise Shoppes 

• New traffic signal at Paradise Shoppes North Driveway 
• Replaced signal mast arm at Rishel Hill Road/Paradise Road intersec�on 
• Added flashing yellow arrow le� turn phasing at Rishel Hill Road/Paradise Road intersec�on 
• Contributed $15,800 to extend the fiber op�c signal communica�on system along Benner Pike 

 
Bellefonte Warehouse 

• New traffic signal at Benner Pike/Penntech Drive 
• Right turn lane on Rishel Hill Road @ Benner Pike 
• Le� turn lane on Rishel Hill Road @ Venture Drive 
• Sidewalk and updated pedestrian ADA accommoda�ons 

 
In TIS/HOP process 

• Paradise Shoppes (3 retail outparcels) 
• Wawa Benner Pike (6,049 SF store/16 fuel posi�ons) 
• McCrossin Site (98-room hotel; 12,000 SF retail) 
• Logan Greene (130 SF homes, 48 duplexes, 182 townhomes) 
• Amberleigh Hotel (107 Rooms) 
• Amberleigh Car Wash (6 bays) 
• Benner Pike Mixed-Use (1 car dealership, 4 retail/office lots) 
• Penn Eagle Industrial Park (5 vacant lots) 
• Benner Commerce Park (4 vacant lots) 

 
Regional traffic need. 
Today, in 2023, the highest traffic volumes on the Benner Pike between I-99 and Bellefonte are … 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 191 of 193



Goal - Discussion - Action Items Date Listed Pending Completed Notes 

Aging water & sewer mains - replace 01.09.2023 X

All Elected Officials attend at least one of the two annual 

Borough Association conferences
01.01.2024 X

Authority - Big Spring Cover Design 01.03.2022 X progressing 
Bag and sell compost at the Musser Lane compost facility 01.03.2022 X

Borough Priority Budgeting 01.01.2022 X Continue to implement

Borough website design upgrades 01.01.2024 X Received quote, needs budgeted

Consider Year-End Holiday Open-House 01.01.2024 X

Continue to add stamped crosswalks in the downtown 01.01.2024 X

Continue to automate WWTP operations with the goal of 

reducing the need for third shift
01.01.2024 X

Contract for reconstruction of the downtown streetlighting 01.01.2024 X

Coordinate/Plan transition of staff to Armory 

Building/relocation of Police offices 
01.01.2024 X

Create loading zone/regulations on Spring near West 

Bishop 
01.01.2024 X

Determine lighting for crosswalks and find grant funding if 

possible
01.01.2024 X

Determine with Public Works how to better remove snow 

in Talleyrand Park & Waterfront steps
01.01.2024 X

Develop and adopt an expense policy and reimbursement 

policy for conferences for elected officials 
01.01.2024 X

Work Session: 1/16/2024
Develop Assest Management and Captial Improvement 

Plan 
01.01.2024 X

Elected Officials attend at least 1 Annual Borough Assoc. 

Conference
01.09.2023 X

Electronic archival of Borough Maps 01.09.2023 X Working to get PSU volunteer

Finalize Transfer of Potter Street Property from SEDA-

COG Railroad
01.01.2024 X

Governor's Park-Batting Cages and rehabilitate the upper 

restrooms
01.01.2024 X

Grind all stumps in ROW 01.09.2023 X Utilize new stump grinder

Implement Event Guideline Form and establish costs for 

Borough staff preparation for events
01.01.2024 X

Logan branch raceway cut off permit and project in 2024 01.01.2024 X

 2024 Goals - Action Items
Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 192 of 193



New Borough Logo on Vehicles
01.09.2023 X

Windward Signs has begun working on adding the Logo 

to Borough vehicles

Open House for recognizing retirees 01.01.2024 X

Parkview Heights Stormwater Project 01.01.2024 X

Police department renovations 04.04.2022 X progressing 

Promote LERTA Program 01.09.2023 X

Remove all stumps at Governor’s Park 01.01.2024 X

Replace aged Streetlight poles on Allegheny & W. Linn 01.09.2023 X

Replace/rehabilitate aging infrastructure 01.01.2024 X

S. Spring/W. Bishop Streetscape project 01.03.2022 X Work to begin October 2023

Select engineer to begin design of the suspension bridge 

(Talleyrand Park) rehabilitation
01.01.2024 X

Sewer Lines-reduce infiltration 01.09.2023 X Camera work/ Repair

Snow Removal in Talleyrand Park & Waterfront Steps 01.01.2024 X Determine removal 

Spring Street Streetscape Project Phase 2 01.01.2024 X

Sprinkler/Elevator Installation in Armory Building. ADA 

access
12.01.2022 X

Armory Property Committee meeting regularly. Ongoing

Stamped Crosswalks in Downtown 01.09.2023 X Trought commercial district

Stoplight at Zion Road/Parkview Blvd 01.01.2024 X

Transfer of Potter St Property 01.01.2024 X Finalize Transfer with SEDA-COG Railroad

update Police Policy and Procedures 01.01.2024 X

Utilize new stump grinder to grind all stumps in the ROW 01.01.2024 X

Wastewater treatment plant stream bank restoration project 

permit in 2023 project completion 2024
01.01.2024 X

Wayfinding - entrance signage, Kiosk 01.09.2023 X Waiting on funding

Work with Fire Executive Board/Advise on budget 

enhancement process
01.01.2024 X

Zion Road Stop Light 01.09.2023 X Need to hire engineer for design

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 5, 2024

Page 193 of 193


	WORK SESSION --AGENDA 02052024
	WORK SESSION--CATA Budget increase request for 2024-2025 (this letter was included in the 01162024 council packet
	COMMUNICATIONS--CATA Service Costs
	COMMUNICATIONS--CATAGO Heatmap

	WORK SESSION - COMMUNICATIONS--CATA Bellefonte Borough Service Letter 2-1-24
	WORK SESSION--Bellefonte Elementary Land Development Plan Review Memo for meeting of 02.05.2024
	MEMORANDUM
	TO:  Bellefonte Borough Council
	FROM:  Gina Thompson
	SUBJECT: Short-Term Rental Draft Ordinance
	DATE:  For Council Work Session February 5, 2024


	COUNCIL MEETING--AGENDA 02052024
	CONSENT--Council Meeting Minutes.01162024.DRAFT
	CONSENT--Council Meeting Minutes.01162024.DRAFT
	January 16, 2024

	CONSENT--Budget v. Actual December 2023
	CONSENT--Budget v. Actual Summary December 2023
	CONSENT--Stover McGlaughlin Invoice January 2024
	CONSENT--Treasurers Report December 2023
	CONSENT--Voucher Summary December 2023
	REPORTS.OCA Memo to Council for meeting of 2.5.2024
	OCA Memo to Council for meeting of 2.5.2024
	HARB Agenda and Minutes for January 9, 2024
	HARB Meeting Agenda 1.9.2024
	HARB Minutes.01.09.2024

	HARB Agenda, Presentation, and Minutes for January 23, 2024
	HARB Meeting Agenda 1.23.2024
	HARB Presentation.1.23.2024.pdf
	BOROUGH OF BELLEFONTE�HISTORICAL ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW BOARD 

	HARB Presentation.1.23.2024.pdf
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8

	HARB Presentation.1.23.2024
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11

	02 HARB Minutes DRAFT.01.23.2024


	OLD BUSINESS-- Ordinance No. 02052024-01 Fire Department Ordiance to remit invoices to insurance carriers for services rendered
	OLD BUSINESS--S. Spring St Streetscape Phase II Memo
	OLD BUSINESS--S. Spring St Streetscape Phase II Memo
	DOC013124-01312024144012

	NEW BUSINESS--Request for Veteran Parking Only sign by the Courthouse
	NEW BUSINESS--Request for Veteran Parking Only sign by the Courthouse
	VETERAN PARKING ONLY

	NEW BUSINESS--Pay Application 06 JC Orr 2219 Bellefonte Borough 1.31.2024
	NEW BUSINESS--2024 Paving List
	NEW BUSINESS--Chapter 35 Amendments to Fire Department Ordinance.02052024
	Chapter 35 Fire Department
	GENERAL REFERENCES
	§ 35-1 Establishment; certificate of recognition of fire companies.
	§ 35-2 Establishment and duties of Bellefonte Fire Department Executive Committee (BFDEC).
	§ 35-3 Authority of Bellefonte Fire Department Chief and Deputies.
	§ 35-4 Tenure of Bellefonte Fire Department Chief.
	§ 35-5 Filling of vacancies in the office of Bellefonte Fire Department Chief; declaration of vacancy.
	§ 35-6 Investigation of complaints against Bellefonte Fire Department Chief.
	§ 35-7 Oath of Bellefonte Fire Department Chief and Deputies.
	§ 35-8 Control of firefighters, apparatus, and equipment at fires.
	§ 35-9 Exclusion of persons interfering with functions of the Fire Department at fires.
	§ 35-10 Inspections by Bellefonte Department Chief; reports.
	§ 35-11 Drivers, operators and members.
	§ 35-12 Rules and regulations.
	§ 35-13 Appointment and duties of Fire Police.
	§ 35-14 Oath of members of Fire Police.
	§ 35-15 Conditions for removal of fire apparatus and equipment from Borough.
	§ 35-16 Bellefonte Borough Council members ineligible for election as Department Chief.


	NEW BUSINESS--BASD-Bellefonte Borough Legal Agreement
	NEW BUSINESS--Council letter of support to CCMPO for Benner Pike Corridor
	NEW BUSINESS--Council letter of support to CCMPO for Benner Pike Corridor
	Benner Pike Corridor MPO request letter

	Goals Discussion Tracker



